_h_
HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Monday, 7 January 2019 6.30 p.m.
Civic Suite - Town Hall, Runcorn

R D wn (< ZJ

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Paul Nolan (Chair)
Councillor Keith Morley (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Chris Carlin

Councillor Ron Hignett

Councillor Valerie Hill

Councillor Joan Lowe

Councillor Carol Plumpton Walsh

Councillor June Roberts

Councillor Dave Thompson
Councillor Bill Woolfall

Councillor Geoff Zygadllo

Please contact Ann Jones on 0151 511 8276 Ext. 16 8276 or
ann.jones@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Committee is on Monday, 4 February 2019



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No.
1. MINUTES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, to
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

ENVIRONMENTAL FUND MANAGEMENT MINUTES

Page No.

1-9

10 - 38

39 -41

42 - 45

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Development Control Committee on Monday, 5 November 2018 at
Civic Suite - Town Hall, Runcorn

DEV14

DEV15

DEV16

Present: Councillors Nolan (Chair), Morley (Vice-Chair), Carlin, R. Hignett,
V. Hill, J. Lowe, C. Plumpton Walsh, June Roberts, Woolfall and Zygadllo

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Thompson
Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: A. Jones, J. Tully, T. Gibbs, A. Plant, G. Henry, M. Pagan and
P. Peak

Also in attendance: 17 Members of the public and Councillors J. and M.
Bradshaw

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action
MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 3 September
2018 were taken as read and signed as a correct record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following applications
for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers
and duties, made the decisions described below.

- 18/00289/FUL - PROPOSED ERECTION OF DWELLING
WITH ACCESS FROM MOSS LANE WITHIN REAR
GARDEN AREA AT IVY COTTAGE, 106 RUNCORN
ROAD, MOORE

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

The Case Officer advised Members that since the
publication of the agenda the requested changes to the
house design listed on page 17 of the report, to amend
some of the windows, remove timber cladding and a hoist
bracket, and replace UPVC windows and fascias with




Page 2

timber, had been agreed by the applicant and amended
plans received. These plans were also considered to
address all outstanding concerns of the Council’s retained
Heritage Adviser.

The Committee was addressed by Mrs Barbara
Brown, who represented Moore residents objecting to the
application. She argued inter alia that the Officer's report
did not address the Greenbelt status of the land and that the
Council should support residents with the protection of the
Greenbelt. She also stated that the hedges would disappear
and therefore have an impact on the historical status of the
Village. Mrs Brown spoke about existing traffic hazards on
Moore Lane and Moss Lane and the fact that the nursery
and pre-school used these for access. She also raised
construction impacts and that the development was not
limited infilling. She concluded by saying that a large
number of people would be affected by this proposal and
urged the Committee to reject it.

Mr Craig Foster, a Moore Parish Councillor and
resident, then addressed the Committee objecting to the
application. He argued inter alia that the plans were
contrary to the NPPF with regards to the type of
development allowed in Greenbelt areas; that the
development was not classed as infilling; and that Moore
Village was a conservation area and any development
should only be allowed if it made a positive contribution by
enhancing the conservation status. He said that the impact
on the heritage assets had not been properly addressed.
He also highlighted that the access from Moss Lane was
dangerous and unsuitable for the scheme and the
application did not amount to affordable housing but was a
speculative market proposal to make profit. He also raised
issues over the use of modern building materials and the
impacts on trees. He urged the Committee to refuse the
application, as the Parish Council had done so.

Councillor John Bradshaw, HBC Daresbury Ward
Councillor, then addressed the Committee also objecting to
the proposal. He stated inter alia that the proposal should
not be deemed to be ‘infill and there was no definition of this
in the planning policies, as stated in the report. He stated
that there was no demonstration of local need in Policy CS6.
He also referred to the current unlawful existing access from
Moss Lane and questioned why the highway standards had
been relaxed in this case.

In response to the speakers comments Officers were
able to clarify the following:




Page 3

The relationship between the Development Plan and
national policy — specifically that the development
plan should apply unless material considerations
indicated otherwise and that national policy as such
was a material consideration;

The application had been assessed and considered
against all relevant planning policies;

The Council’s retained Heritage Adviser had raised
no objections and that the impact on the heritage
assets had been properly assessed;

The proposed materials were considered to be
acceptable and would be subject to a condition;

The impact of the proposed development of trees and
hedgerows was considered to be acceptable;

The proposed development was considered to
constitute limited infill by Officers;

The duty of the Members of the Development Control
Committee was clarified as being to determine
applications in accordance with planning policies;

The profits being made by any developer was not a
material consideration;

The Council’'s Highways Officer had raised no
objections to the application, following the completion
of a traffic speed assessment of the proposed access
from Moss Lane. The Highways Officer explained the
standards that were used in making an assessment.

After hearing the speakers’ comments and Officers’

updates and responses, the Committee agreed that the
application be approved, subject to the conditions listed in
the report.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved

subject to the following conditions:

1.

2.

Standard 3 year permission to commence
development (BE1);

Condition specifying approved and amended plans
(BE1);

Requiring submission and agreement of a
Construction Management Plan including vehicle
access routes and construction car parking; wheel
cleansing facilities / strategy; construction and
delivery hours (BE1);

Condition(s) requiring the submission and approval of
the materials to be used (BE2);

Landscaping condition, requiring submission and
agreement of hard and soft landscaping (BE2);
Condition(s) requiring submission and agreement of
drainage details (PR16);




DEV17

Page 4

7. Boundary treatments including retaining walls to be
submitted and approved in writing (BE2);

8. Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be
constructed prior to occupation of properties /
commencement of use (BE1);

9. Requiring submission and agreement of site and
finished floor (BE1);

10.Condition relating to discovery of previously
unidentified contamination (PR14);

11.Condition(s) requiring replacement tree planting
(BE1);

12. Condition(s) requiring submission and agreement of
drainage details (PR16); and

13.Submission and agreement of Site Waste
Management Plan (WM8).

- 18/00364/FUL - PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
3 STOREY FLATS AND PUBLIC HOUSE AND
CONSTRUCTION OF 16 NO. TWO BED HOUSES ON THE
SITE AT TANHOUSE, RUNCORN

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

Officers advised that they were now able to confirm
that there were 38 parking spaces on the plan. Also, it was
noted that Condition number 9 of the report was added in
error and should be removed from the list.

The Committee agreed that the application be
approved, subject to the amendment mentioned above, and
the conditions listed below.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved
subject to the following conditions:

1. Standard 3 year permission to commence
development (BE1);

2. Condition specifying approved and amended plans
(BE1);

3. Requiring submission and agreement of a
Construction Management Plan including vehicle
access routes and construction car parking; wheel
cleansing facilities / strategy; construction and
delivery hours (BE1);

4. Condition(s) requiring the submission and approval of
the materials to be used (BE2);

5. Landscaping condition, requiring submission and
agreement of hard and soft landscaping (BE2);




DEV18

Page 5

6. Boundary treatments including retaining walls to be
submitted and approved in writing (BE2);

7. Requiring development be carried out in accordance
with the approved site and finished floor levels;

8. Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc, to be
constructed prior to occupation of properties /
commencement of use (BE1);

9. Condition relating to discovery of previously
unidentified contamination (PR14);

10.Conditions relating to tree protection during
construction (BE1);

11.Condition(s) requiring replacement tree planting
(BE1);

12. Condition(s) requiring submission and agreement of
drainage details (PR16);

13.Submission and agreement of Site Waste
Management Plan (WM8);

14.Submission and agreement of a method statement for
dealing with Cotoneaster and Rhododendron;

15.Submission and agreement of a Small Mammal
Reasonable Avoidance Measures Statement (GE21);

16.Submission and agreement of  biodiversity
enhancement features including bird and bat boxes,
insect and hedgehog houses (BE1 and GE21);

17.Site investigation, including mitigation to be submitted
and approved in writing (PR14); and

18.Condition requiring submission and agreement of a
scheme of bollards or other measures to protect
footways from parked vehicles (TP17).

- 18/00368/FUL - PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF THREE
STOREY APARTMENT BLOCK COMPRISING 13 NO.
APARTMENTS WITH ANCILLARY DEVELOPMENT AT
FORMER ALBERT HOTEL, 160 ALBERT ROAD, WIDNES

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

The Committee was advised that amended plans had
been received. The cycle and car parking details were now
agreed. Officers described amendments made to the
elevations of the proposals. Members noted that a condition
relating to the archaeological recording of the building prior
to demolition had been missed from the report. Further, an
additional condition was recommended requiring submission
and agreement of a mechanism to limit the opening of
windows at ground floor level over the highway.

The Committee was addressed by Mr Richard




Page 6

Scragg, a neighbouring resident. He had no objection to the
proposal but was concerned that the party wall award had
not been given to him and he requested that this be received
before the commencement of work on site.

In response, the Council’'s Legal Advisor stated that
the Party Wall Act 1996 was not a material consideration for
planning permission so unfortunately it could not be added
as a condition.

The Committee agreed to approve the application
subject to the above additional conditions being added to the
conditions listed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved
subject to the following conditions:

1. Standard 3 year permission to commence
development (BE1);

2. Condition specifying approved and amended plans
(BE1);

3. Requiring submission and agreement of a
Construction Management Plan including vehicle
access routes and construction car parking; wheel
cleansing facilities / strategy; construction and
delivery hours (BE1);

4. Condition(s) requiring the submission and approval of
the materials to be used (BE2);

5. Vehicle access, parking servicing etc, to be
constructed prior to occupation of properties /
commencement of use (BE1);

6. Requiring submission and agreement of site and
finished floor (BE1);

7. Securing implementation of cycle parking and bin
storage (TP6 / BE1);

8. Condition relating to discovery of previously
unidentified contamination (PR14);

9. Condition(s) requiring submission and agreement of
drainage details (PR16);

10.Submission and agreement of Site Waste
Management Plan (WM8);

11.Submission of archaeological recording of the
building; and

12.Submission and agreement of the mechanism/other
measures, to limit the opening of windows at ground
level over the highway.




DEV19

Page 7

- 18/00405/FUL - PROPOSED EXTENSION AND
REFURBISHMENT OF EXISTING INDUSTRIAL UNIT
WITHIN USE CLASSES B2/B8 TOGETHER WITH A NEW
TWO STOREY OFFICE FACILITY AND ASSOCIATED
EXTERNAL WORKS ON LAND TO EAST OF EVERITE
RAOD, WIDNES

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

Members were referred to the supplementary
information published in the AB Update List, explaining that
the highways issues had now been resolved with the
submission of an amended site plan and that a preliminary
Roost Assessment had been submitted. The
recommendation was amended to delete condition number 8
and add it as an informative to any permission, as the
condition did not meet the relevant tests.

The Committee agreed that the application be
approved subject to the Conditions outlined in the report.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved
subject to:

a) authority being delegated to the Operational Director
— Policy, Planning and Transportation, in consultation
with the Chair or Vice Chair of the Committee, to
determine the application following receipt of an
amended plan dealing with the highway issues
outlined and the consideration of the likelihood of bats
being present on the site along with necessary
surveys / mitigation; and

b) following this approval it would be subject to the
following conditions, as well as additional conditions
being added in relation to outstanding matters:

Time limit — full permission;

Approved plans;

Implementation of proposed site levels (BE1);
Implementation of external facing materials (BE1
and BE2);

Soft landscaping scheme (BE1);

Boundary treatments scheme and details (BE1
and BE22);

Tree root protection measures (GE27);

Ground contamination (PR14);

Hours of construction (BE1);

i NS

oo

© N




DEV20

Page 8

10.Drainage strategy (PR16);

11.Foul and surface water of a separate system
(PR16);

12. Construction management plan (Highways) (BE1);

13.Electric vehicle charging points scheme and
implementation (CS19);

14.Cycle storage details and implementation (BE1);

15.Provision and retention of parking revised junction
/ access and pedestrian access constructed in
accordance with approved plans (BE1);

16.Pedestrian access, steps, handrail and tactile
paving details and implementation; and

17.Waste audit / site waste management plan.

- 18/00434/FUL - PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF 9019
M2 INDUSTRIAL UNIT FOR USE CLASSES B1, B2 AND
B8 ON LAND BETWEEN ASTON FIELDS ROAD AND
NORTHWICH ROAD, RUNCORN

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

Officers advised that since the publication of the
report an updated Sustainability Report had been received
and outstanding queries relating to drainage were awaited;
the applicant had agreed to submit these in accordance with
Condition number 12.

The Committee agreed that the application be
approved subiject to the Conditions listed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved
subject to the following conditions:

1. Standard 3 year timescale for commencement of
development;

2. Specifying approved and amended plans;

3. Requiring submission and agreement of a
Construction Environmental Management Plan to
include wheel wash and construction hours;

4. Materials condition(s) requiring external finishing
materials be carried out as approved (BE2);

5. Landscaping condition, requiring submission and
approval both hard and soft landscaping (BE1/2);

6. Boundary treatment condition(s) requiring fencing etc
be carried out as approved (BE2);

7. Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be
constructed prior to occupation of properties /
commencement of use (BE1);




Page 9

8. Requiring submission and agreement of cycle parking
details (TP6);

9. Requiring submission and agreement of electric
vehicle parking and charging point(s) details (NPPF);

10.Requiring retention of the approved overflow car park
for the life of the use (TP12);

11.Conditions relating to further detailed site
investigation / mitigation / verification (PR14/15);

12.Conditions relating to / requiring submission and
agreement of detailed foul surface water / highway
drainage scheme, including attenuation (BE1/PR5);

13.Requiring submission and agreement of a green
travel plan (TP16);

14.Requiring submission and agreement of site and
finished floor levels (BE1);

15.Submission and agreement of site waste
management plan (WM8);

16.Submission and agreement of an Operational Waste
Management Plan (WM9); and

17.Requiring submission and agreement of a car park
management plan (TP12).

Meeting ended at 6.35 p.m.



Page 10

Agenda Iltem 3

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee

DATE: 7 January 2019

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director — Enterprise, Community and
Resources

SUBJECT: Planning Applications to be Determined by the
Committee

WARD(S): Boroughwide

Application No Proposal Location

18/00285/WST

Proposed change of use to waste
transfer and treatment facility,
construction of waste transfer
building and ancillary
development including
weighbridge, welfare facilities,
storage bays and fencing.

Former J Bryan (Victoria)
Ltd, Pickerings Road,

Widnes




Page 11

APPLICATION NO:

18/00285/WST

LOCATION: Former J Bryan (Victoria) Ltd, Pickerings
Road, Widnes

PROPOSAL.: Proposed change of use to waste
transfer and treatment facility,
construction of waste transfer building
and ancillary development including
weighbridge, welfare facilities, storage
bays and fencing

WARD: Ditton

PARISH: Halebank

AGENT(S) / APPLICANT(S): Veolia ES UK Ltd

DEVELOPMENT PLAN ALLOCATION:
National Planning Policy Framework
(2018)

Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005)
Halton Core Strategy Local Plan (2013)

Action Area Halebank
Coastal Zone Developed
Environmental Priority Areas

DEPARTURE

No

REPRESENTATIONS:

Letters of representation from 7 objectors
Letter from Ward Councillor expressing
“concerns”

Letter of Objection from Halebank Parish
Council

Letter from Ward Councillor requesting
the application be reported to
Development Control Committee

KEY ISSUES:

Principle of development, regeneration
and employment; waste policy; noise,
dust, odour and other amenity issues;
drainage; contaminated land and
highway and traffic issues

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Subject to Conditions

SITE MAP




Hale Road Industrial Estate

THE APPLICATION SITE

The Site

Site of approximately 1.1 hectares being the site of the former J Bryan (Victoria) Ltd facility
located within the Halebank Industrial Estate which is accessed off Pickerings Road. The
site is currently vacant, but was previously used by a demolition contractor and scrap metal
processing company as a demolition waste storage/ transfer yard and depot. Although
disused there are a number of structures on the former storage yard comprising an office
building, single storey industrial building, a metal clad lean-to attached to the existing brick
built offices, new weighbridge, weighbridge and welfare cabin accommodation, various steel
containers/ tanks and an established fence line to create the sites boundary.

Planning History

None directly relevant. The site has a long and complicated history associated with the
historical use and ongoing development of the site particularly as a plant hire and
demolition contractor’s yard which historical photographs show included external storage
and sorting of demolition wastes.

THE APPLICATION

The proposal and Background

Permission is sought for the change of use of the site to a waste transfer and treatment
facility, construction of waste transfer building and ancillary development including
weighbridge, welfare facilities, storage bays and fencing The waste management facility
will comprise a waste transfer station with a shredder to manufacture a refuse derived fuel
and bulking/ transfer of recyclates, along with an external area for the storage, treatment and
transfer of construction and demolition wastes.

The applicant states that their existing waste collection fleet and current vehicle maintenance
activities will continue on the existing Ditton Road site. The Pickerings Road site is proposed
to provide scope to develop a transfer station which cannot be accommodated on the Ditton
Road site due to the space limitations. The applicants state that they are seeking to develop
their own local infrastructure with efficient access to its customers in the main population




Page 13

centres across Halton and Merseyside to reduce reliance upon third party facilities in and
around its existing Widnes depot.

Documentation

The applicant has submitted a planning application, drawings and the following reports:
Planning/ Supporting Statement

Phase 1 and 2 Site Investigation Reports

Transport Statement and Traffic Generation Comparison Technical Note

Flood Risk Assessment

Noise Report

POLICY CONTEXT

National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in July 2018 to set out the
Government’s planning policies for England and how these should be applied.

Paragraph 47 states that planning law requires for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Decisions on application should be make as quickly as possible and within statutory
timescale unless a longer period has been agreed by the applicant in writing.

Paragraph 11 and paragraph 38 state that plans and decisions should apply a presumption
in favour of sustainable development and that local planning authorities should work in a
positive and creative way, working pro-actively with applicants to secure developments that
will improve economic, social and environmental conditions of their areas.”

Paragraphs 80-82 states the need for planning policies and decisions to be made to create
conditions in which business can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight to be placed
on the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local
business needs and wider opportunities for development. It encourages an adaptive
approach to support local and inward investment to meet the strategic economic and
regenerative requirements of the area.

National Planning Policy for Waste

The National Planning Policy for Waste sets ambitious aims to work towards a more
sustainable and efficient approach to resource use and management through positive
planning in delivering sustainable development and resource efficiency including through the
provision of modern infrastructure and by driving waste management up the waste hierarchy
and by securing the re-use, recovery or disposal of waste without endangering human health
or harming the environment.

Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (2005)

The following Unitary Development Plan policies and policy documents are relevant to this
application: -

RG5 Action Area 5 Halebank

BE1 General Requirements for Development

BE2 Quality of Design

BE3 Environment Priority Areas




Page 14

GE30 The Mersey Coastal Zone

PR1  Air Quality

PR2 Noise Nuisance

PR3  Odour Nuisance

PR4  Light Pollution and Nuisance

PR14 Contaminated Land

PR16 Development and Flood Risk

MW1 All Minerals and Waste Management Developments
MW2 Requirements for All Applications

TP6 Cycling Provision as Part of New Development
TP7 Pedestrian Provision as Part of New Development
TP12 Car Parking

TP15 Accessibility to New Development

TP17 Safe Travel for All

E5 New Industrial and Commercial Development

Halton Core Strategy Local Plan (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Core Strategy are of relevance:
CS1 Halton’s Spatial Strategy

CS2 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CS4 Employment Land Supply and Locational Priorities
CS15 Sustainable Transport

CS18 High Quality Design

CS19 Sustainable Development and Climate Change
CS20 Natural and Historic Environment

CS23 Managing Pollution and Risk

CS24 Waste

Joint Waste Local Plan 2013

WMO Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

WM1 Guide to Site Prioritisation

WM2 Sub-regional Site Allocations

WM3 Allocations for District Level Sites

WM5  Areas of Search

WM10 High Quality Design and Operation

WM11 Sustainable Waste Transport

WM12 Criteria for Waste Management Development

WM13 Planning Applications for New Waste Management Facilities on Unallocated Sites

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Design of New Industrial and Commercial Development SPD

CONSULTATIONS

The application has been advertised via the following methods: site notices posted near to
the site, press notice, and Council website. Surrounding residents, landowners and
Halebank Parish Council have been notified by letter.



Page 15

The following organisations have been consulted and any comments received have been
summarised below in the assessment section of the report where appropriate:

Environment Agency — No Objection

United Utilities — No objection but Request Conditions
Natural England — No Comments to Make

Liverpool Airport — No Objection but Request Conditions

Council Services:
HBC Contaminated Land — No Objection subject to Conditions
HBC Highways — No Objection subject to Conditions
Lead Local Flood Authority — No Objection subject to Conditions
HBC Environmental Health - No Objection subject to Conditions

REPRESENTATIONS

Letters of representation have been received from 7 objectors raising the following
issues:

Impact of traffic and parking on local business and residential areas

Air pollution, odour, noise, dust, litter, attraction to vermin

Household waste is a real concern

Debris on roads causing punctures and impact on other businesses
That Halton is becoming the dustbin of the North West

That the original use resulted in only limited traffic

Particular concern re: odour and dust and impact on residents and local
investment

Fire Risk

e Impact on local residents

e Negative impact on character of are, regeneration and environmental quality

A letter has been received from a Ward Councillor outlining concerns of his
constituents as follows and confirming that “I broadly share these concerns”:

“As the ward councillor, I've been contacted by a number of constituents regarding
this application which has been presented by Veolia UK - | broadly share these
concerns and ask that this be noted as part of the ongoing consultation regarding the
application.

My principal concern is around the environmental impact of such a facility in terms of
odours, dust and litter blown on the wind, based on experience of similar premises in
other areas, as well as an increase in traffic from heavy goods vehicles. The site is in
close proximity to an existing housing estate and also very near to another site which
is likely to be developed if the Council's Development and Allocations Local Plan is
approved.”



Page 16

A further letter has been received from another Ward Councillor requesting the
application be reported to Development Control Committee.

One letter of objection has been received from Halebank Parish Council stating as follows:

The Parish Council has asked to me to express to you their deep concern and alarm at
proposals by Veolia ES UK Ltd for a change of use of land at the former J Bryan (Victoria)
Ltd, Pickerings Rd, Hale Bank, for it to be used for a Waste Transfer and Treatment Facility.

Hale Bank Parish Council believes the site is totally unsuitable for this use for the following
reasons:

. The Guide to Site Prioritisation (Policy WM1) in the Joint Merseyside & Halton Waste
Local Plan states that developers are required to show that the site that they wish to develop
is either:

- an allocated site

- an unallocated site within an Area of Search

- an unallocated site which can be justified using the Waste Local Plan site
assessment method

The Parish Council notes that:

- the former J Bryan (Victoria) Ltd, Pickerings Rd, Hale Bank is not an allocated site.

- neither is it an unallocated site within an Area of Search

Policy WM 1of the Joint Waste Development Plan (JWDP) quite clearly states: Developers
should develop sites allocated in the Waste Local Plan in the first instance, and should only
consider alternatives to allocated sites if allocated sites have already been developed out, or
are not available for the waste use proposed by the industry, or can be demonstrated as not
being suitable for the proposed waste management operation.

However, in their Supporting Statement, which accompanies this application, at section 7.5.3
the applicant acknowledges this condition in the JWDP. It reads:

‘The proposed development site is not allocated in Policies WM2 (Sub-Regional Allocations)
or WM3 (District Level Allocations) but is within the vicinity of the ‘Industrial areas of
Ditton/Widnes ‘area of search, policy WM5.’

Hale Bank is quite clearly not in Ditfon and there is a clear physical separation of the
industrial area the JWDP refers to and Hale Bank a primarily residential area in the form of
the West Coast railine and Ditton Bridge. It is wholly misrepresentative of the applicant to
suggest that Hale Bank is part of Ditton for purposes of claiming this site to be an
unallocated site within an Area of Search.

Furthermore, the Supporting Statement (section 7.5.5) states that ‘the site was previously
permitted and therefore deemed to be an ‘existing waste management licensed’ for the
purposes of the Waste Local Plan.’

The Parish Council is both confused and concerned by this comment and assertion by the
applicant just because the previous site occupants demolition company J Bryan (Victoria)
conducted activities for which a licence was required it does not logically follow that their line
of business was the same as that of a Waste Transfer Station. A Waste Transfer Station will
dispose of much larger amounts of differing waste streams. Also which ‘Waste Local Plan’ is
the applicant referring to? It clearly is not the Joint Waste Development Plan to which Halton



Page 17

Borough Council has subscribed to because as previously stated this site in Hale Bank is not
an allocated site nor is it an unallocated site. Therefore the Parish Council would submit that
this is also a redundant line of planning argument by Veolia.

. The Parish Council is aware that The JWDP site in Halton (Widnes Waterfront) which
is a designated site for a WTS has not been developed out and is currently available for use
as a Waste Transfer Station.

Again referring to the applicant’s Supporting Statement 7.5.10 in which Veolia states: ‘one of
the key requirements for a potential transfer station development site was proximity to the
depot (existing Widnes depot). The Pickerings Road site offered that benefit and was known
to be available through its active marketing. It is recognised that the Waste Local Plan
allocates other sites in the Halton area...however these sites were not ideally located for the
existing Diffon Road depot operation thereby any synergies reduced, and importantly the
sites were not known to be commercially available.’

With respect to the applicant, Veolia, Hale Bank Parish Council, would not wish to be the
cause of any‘synergies’ being ‘reduced, but would respectfully point out that Veolia’s wish to
have a WTS site closer to their existing depot is an irrelevance in terms of compliance with
the terms of the JWDP which HBC’s planning department is fully aware of and also the
Parish Council would be delighted to inform the applicant that as, previously stated the
allocated WTS site at Widnes Waterfront is fully available and furthermore the Parish
Council has learned that the vendor was ‘totally unaware’ of Veolia’s requirements for a
WTS as he had NEVER been contacted by them.

This application directly contradicts one of the Strategic Objectives of the Waste Local Plan
SO6 - to minimise the adverse effects of waste management development (including
transportation) and enhance positive impacts where possible, on human health, local
amenity and the natural and urban environment and heritage of Merseyside and Halton.
Additionally, Promoting Healthy Communities’ section 8 of the NPPF Guidance requires that
the planning system should facilitate healthy communities. Paragraph 8.70 states (in part)
that planning decisions should ensure an integrated approach to considering the location of
housing, economic uses and community facilities. A waste transfer station dealing with
85,000 tonnes of commercial and industrial waste and 40,000 tonnes of construction,
demolition and excavation materials per annum, in the proposed location would profoundly
contravene all of those policies. This would be evident in terms of noise, increased traffic
and air pollution.

. Noise

Both from the maneuvering of large vehicles and from elements of the waste transfer
operations themselves — would be an issue of even wider impact throughout the majority of
the village.

National Planning Policy Framework guidance expressly states that noise exposure that is
noticeable and disruptive, causing extensive and sustained changes in behaviour, with
potential for sleep disturbance resulting in premature awakening and difficulty in getting back
to sleep - without any ability to mitigate the effect of that noise - would result in quality of life
being diminished.



Page 18

Veolia’s application states the WTS would operate between 7am and 7pm Monday to Friday,
and from 7am to 3pm Saturday, Sunday and Bank Holidays. There is no mention of
Christmas or Easter opening hours.

Even at present, on most days it is quite possible to hear the beepers from maneuvering
vehicles operating on the existing commercial sections of the village, which are all very near
the application site. In the context of a large village community, with absolutely no scope for
noise mitigation, the figures for additional commercial vehicle movements on the application
site are truly horrifying. The NPPF guidance goes on to state that if there is such an impact
on health and quality of life then, regardless of the benefits of the activity causing the noise,
this situation should be prevented from occurring.

. Odour Management Plan?

There is no evidence that an odour management plan has been prepared to accompany this
application by Veolia. Environment Agency legislation requires a ‘written odour management
plan that explains how (you) the applicant will prevent, or where that is not possible,
minimise odour if (your) the applicant’s site causes odour pollution OR if you carry out any of
the following activities: landfilling biodegradable waste; household, commercial and industrial
waste transfer station; and so on...

Although the Parish Council appreciates that HBC is not the body that would issue the
applicant with an EA permit, it would have thought an odour management plan would have
been completed with the planning application as a matter of courtesy for residents Veolia
hopes to have as neighbours in Hale Bank.

. Traffic.

In addition to all the breaches of policy referred to above, there is widespread, profound and
justified concern from very many local residents regarding the large number and nature of
the vehicle movements that would be generated by the proposed waste transfer
development on this site. This site can only be accessed via a residential area unlike the
JWDP allocated site at Widnes Waterfront.

In section 8.3.3 of the applicant’'s Supporting Statement the huge amount of extra traffic this
site will create PER DAY, if given permission is detailed.

90 HGV movements

20 trade waste collections vehicles

16 articulated vehicle movements

‘Multiple movements’ of smaller skip lorries to and from site

Up to 20 site staff movements.

All this extra vehicular traffic will not only increase congestion on the village roads, and
increase wear and tear to Ditton Bridge, but doubtless add to the nitrogen dioxide pollution
levels in the area.

As both HBC'’s planning and environmental health departments are aware Hale Bank Parish
Council has carried out its own independent air monitoring of Nitrogen Dioxide levels within
the village for the past four years. While results have not yet breached DEFRA’'S AQM
guidelines, they have come dangerously close and remain very high in many locations
particularly ones close to this site.



Page 19

The Parish Council is extremely concerned that such an increase in vehicles as is proposed
by this application would cause nitrogen dioxides levels to breach and cause detriment and
harm to the health of Hale Bank residents, particularly the young and elderly.

Halton Council has, over the years, made massive advances to improve the physical
environment of Widnes; this development would turn our community into a dumping ground.
So it is on this basis that Hale Bank Parish Council would take great exception if, given the
observations outlined in this submission, HBC was to go ahead and grant permission for this
application and unfortunately, the Parish Council would, once again, be forced to seek legal
advice regarding a potential Judicial Review of ANY such decision.

The Parish Council sincerely hopes that such a course of action would not be necessary and
that HBC will make a decision compliant with the JWDP.

The applicant states that they have made contact with each of the commercial businesses
who have made representations and answered any questions they may have. Whilst they
have not approached members of the public directly but have offered to provide contact
details to explain the proposals to them, the controls that will be put in place and hopefully
be able to better understand where there concerns lie.

ASSESSMENT

Background

The applicant operates a trade waste collection and management service across Halton and
Merseyside. The proposed transfer facility is reportedly proposed to allow a more efficient
collection and processing associated with its current waste collection fleet and vehicle
maintenance activities which will continue on their existing Ditton Road site.

Trade waste from local businesses is typically subject to ‘at source’separation i.e. cardboard
and clearly recyclable material separated from residual wastes. The proposed bulking/
treatment facility will allow recyclates to be bulked on the site and residual waste to be
treated to produce a refuse derived fuel for use in consented recovery facilities aimed at
increasing the rates of trade waste recycling and minimise the amount of trade waste sent to
landfill. Bulked waste, recyclates etc. would be transported from the facility to re-processors
and recovery facilities within a reduced number of larger vehicles.

The submitted supporting statement states that the local business currently supports
approximately 43 staff directly and indirectly working within Veolia’s local trade waste
collection business (consisting of sales, office staff and drivers/operatives). The development
of the proposed transfer facility will consolidate existing local jobs based out of the Ditton
road depot and generate up to an addition 3-5 full time employees onsite with between a
further 2-5 offsite (including site operatives and drivers employed to remove the stored
waste).

Description of Proposed Development and Process Details

The development proposed is principally a new transfer station to service Veolia’s trade
waste collection business consisting of the following main features and processes as
summarised form the applicant’s submission:
° initial site clearance/ demolition - specifically the existing canopy structure, removal
of shipping containers and other waste materials;



Page 20

proposed use of existing offices for administration staff;
new weighbridge(s);
a proposed building for the bulking, treatment and transfer of collected materials,
with a series of internal storage bays for delivered materials;
° processing of delivered residual wastes in the new building to produce a refuse
derived fuel (RDF) for export;
external glass and wood storage bays;
fire water tank and associated pump house to feed a new fire suppression system;
new plant room to service the proposed development;
proposed area for construction and demolition waste storage and processing;
improvements to the site drainage and surfacing;
new fuel tanks.

The proposed waste transfer and treatment building which is aligned along the south-
western boundary of the site will provide a footprint of approximately 1,105 square metres
(approximately 43 metres x 26 metres) with an overall height of 11.3 m to the eaves and
13.2m to the ridge allowing sufficient space for process equipment, collection vehicles to tip
inside and bulkers to be loaded in the building.

The building will be a portal framed industrial building with exposed precast concrete panels
at its base, Goosewing Grey steel wall cladding above with contrasting red fascias/ soffits,
gutters and doors including 4, electronically operated, rapid rise doors to the front elevation.
To the side elevations there will be a series of fixed natural ventilation grills and/ or a roof
ridge vent to provide sufficient ventilation.

Adjacent to the northern side of the proposed building will be a sprinkler tank with associated
plant to provide necessary fire protection. Within the building there will be a series of precast
concrete push walls with bays delineated for the receipt of delivered material. The building is
stated by the applicant to have been sized according to the maximum potential annual
tonnage to be collected by the local business and is sufficient to accommodate material in
the event of restrictions onsite or at the off-site receiving facility (e.g. periods of
maintenance/ shutdown).

The recyclables and residual wastes will arrive separately and be tipped into designated
bays within the building. As with the residual waste, the elements of recyclable waste will
also be bulked for onward collection/ transit to an approved recycling facility. Mobile plant will
be used to move the waste around the building, load the shredder and HGVs. Bulk vehicles
would be loaded with refuse derived fuel (RDF) and bulked recyclates within the confines of
the main building.

It is anticipated that shredded material will then be loose bulked and loaded into a bulker
HGV for export offsite. Certain receiving facilities may however prefer to receive the material
baled and wrapped. Therefore it is proposed to potentially install required equipment in the
building at a later date dependent upon the requirements of the receiving facility.

It is expected that waste (both residual and recyclable trade waste) will be delivered by
approximately 52 collection vehicles of various types per day. Delivery vehicles will be refuse
collection vehicles and skip container vehicles of various sizes. Refuse collection vehicles
will typically visit the site once following the completion of their scheduled collection rounds
(late-morning/ early-afternoon) before returning to Veolia’s Ditton Road site to park
overnight. In order to remove waste and minimise any overnight storage, up to 12 bulk loads
would be required to export the waste off-site (at its maximum throughput).

As part of the applicant’s ongoing contractual commitment with Merseyside Recycling and



Page 21

Waste Authority Veolia manage a small quantity of construction and demolition waste from
local householders. This is material placed into the relevant skips at local household waste
recycling centres and amounts up to approximately 40,000 tonnes per annum of typically soil
and rubble.

It is proposed that these materials will be stored in relevant bays in an area at the north east
end of the site. On a periodic basis this material will be processed through a mobile crusher/
screen and then exported offsite for reuse. It is anticipated that on average the processing
would take place over one working day every fortnight.

According to the submitted form, the facility will operate between the hours of 0700 — 1900
Monday to Friday, and 07:00 — 15:00 on weekends and Bank Holidays.

Principle of Development

The site is designated as a within Action Area 5 — Halebank, an Environmental Priority Area
and The Mersey Coastal Zone - Developed in the Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP).
UDP Policy RG5 provides for a series of uses which it states will be acceptable within the
action area along with a series of general principles for development. Whilst provision for “a
variety of employment uses” is listed under principles of development the proposed use is
not specifically listed as an acceptable use. Notwithstanding that, the list of acceptable uses
given in Policy RG5 could not be considered as an exhaustive list nor does Policy RG5 seek
to exclude uses not listed within the policy but more represents a reflection of the aspiration
of the policy to seek enhancement of the area.

UDP Policy GE30 relating to the Developed Coastal Zone requires that “particular attention”
should be paid to the location of the development within the Mersey Coastal Zone by
attention to environmental quality and, where possible, improving access to the coast. It
states that “proposals which would contribute to regeneration, and/ or to the enhancement of
environmental quality, tourism and recreation will be encouraged.

The proposed site is not considered particularly visible from any main road or rail transport
routes and therefore UDP Policy BE3 requires that proposals raise environmental standards
and be of a quality of design that enhances the character of the area.

The Council’s retained adviser on waste has confirmed that the proposal is supportive of the
vision for the Waste Local Plan (WLP), and of the majority of the Strategic Objectives. It will
also assist the WLP area achieve net self-sufficiency, as the purpose of the facility is to
serve Veolia’s business needs in the area.

They confirm that the applicant has supplied sufficient information to demonstrate
compliance with policies WM1, WM2, WM3, WM5 and WM13, and that no pathway is
identified that could give rise to likely significant effects on the European sites and therefore
a detailed Habitats Regulations Assessment report is not required in this case.

Contrary to the views presented by Halebank Parish Council, the site is considered to be
within the area of search as defined by JWLP Policy WM5 as falling within the Industrial
Areas of Ditton/ Widnes. In this case the policy is considered to relate to Industrials Areas of
Ditton and Widnes as indicated by Figure 4.2.

The applicant has considered policy WM10 (High Quality Design and Operation of Waste
Management Facilities), the visual impacts are not considered significant as the area is an
existing industrial area, the facility will be designed to fit into its surroundings.

As requested the applicant has provided further clarification demonstrating that traffic
generation from the proposed development are significantly lower than the current permitted



Page 22

traffic generation and this has been agreed by the Council’s Highways Officer. Further
clarification has also be provided regarding impacts from odour management, dust from
external crushing/screening operation and consideration of cumulative impacts in line with
policy WM12 and on Sustainable Waste Transport in line with policy WM11. The council’s
Environmental Health Officers have confirmed that the proposals are considered acceptable
and that they raise no objection. No information has been provided on where the waste will
be going and this has been requested. This is however considered to be a market decision
dependant on contracts and not a matter for control through any grant of planning
permission.

Issues relating to noise, dust, odour and other amenity issues are addressed later in this
report. The proposals are considered to make a positive contribute to regeneration and to
the enhancement of environmental quality of the area when compared with the existing site
and former use. The proposals are considered to accord with UDP policies RG5, BE3 and
GE30, the Waste Local Plan and Core Strategy Policy CS24 and are therefore considered
acceptable in principle.

Design and Character

The scheme proposes a modern waste transfer and treatment building aligned along the
south-western boundary of the site together with sprinkler tank and pump house,
weighbridges with a weighbridge office and external glass, wood and construction and
demolition waste storage within bays. An existing office building within the site will be
retained.

The proposed waste transfer and treatment building will provide a footprint of approximately
1,105 square metres (approximately 43 metres x 26 metres) with an overall height of 11.3 m
to the eaves and 13.2m to the ridge. The building will be a portal framed industrial building
with exposed precast concrete panels at its base, Goosewing Grey steel wall cladding above
with contrasting red fascias/ soffits, gutters and doors including 4, electronically operated,
rapid rise doors to the front elevation. To the side elevations there will be a series of fixed
natural ventilation grills and/ or a roof ridge vent to provide sufficient ventilation. Despite the
utilitarian nature of some of the buildings they represent a significant improvement on the
current dilapidated and unsightly buildings, structures and open storage which currently and
formerly occupied the site. All are considered appropriate to the character of the area, and
the proposed development will undoubtedly result in significant improvement and contribute
to the regeneration of and raise environmental quality in the area.

The application includes provision for external storage of glass, wood and construction and
demolition input and output. The applicant has confirmed that these will all be contained with
allocated bays to a maximum of 4m in height and has agreed for this to be controlled by
condition of any planning permission.

The applicant has included aerial photographs of the site during its previous activity as a
demolition contractor’'s depot at Fig.1 and Fig.2 of their submitted supporting statement.
These show substantial elements of, apparently uncontrolled, external storage of waste and
plant to varying heights. The proposed development will contain substantial elements of the
process within buildings. External storage and processing of wastes will, on the basis of the
submission, be substantially less intrusive than the previous use. The proposed new
buildings and plant will further increase screening of the site, HGV and plant activities and
any external waste processing and storage within the site.

The site is already largely enclosed by galvanised palisade fencing. It is not proposed to
change the fencing, other than by the widening of the gates and the addition of close board
fencing along the frontage to Pickerings Road. A short section of one boundary is currently
secured by a series of shipping containers, which are to be removed. This boundary will be



Page 23

fenced with palisade fencing to match existing, but is an internal boundary and has only
limited visibility from public vantage points. The applicant has confirmed that they are willing
to accept a condition that the new fencing and gates to the entrance will be powder coated in
a colour to be agreed.

On that basis it is considered that the proposed use will represent a significant improvement

on the previous use and therefore wholly consistent with UDP Policies RG5, BE3, GE30 and
ES.

Noise, Dust, Odour and Other Amenity Issues

A number of objections have been made regarding the potential of issues from the
development including noise, dust, odour and other amenity issues. A number of the issues
raised appear to relate to experiences resulting from existing industrial and waste facilities in
the area. It is important that the issues raised are considered only in so far as they relate to
the development subject of the current application.

The application is supported by a detailed noise assessment. Background sound
measurements have been recorded at the nearest sensitive receptor during daytime periods
during a weekend to establish the lowest likely representative background and residual
sound levels. Calculations have been carried out to determine the highest likely noise
contribution at the nearest residential property boundaries for comparison.

The assessment has considered the effect of noise ‘break out’ with an assumption that
mobile plant operations and fixed plant will be operational 100 per cent of the time. The
assessment has also considered the effect of vehicle movements, mobile plant movements,
occasional operation of the crusher and screening plant, bulking activities and shredder
within the building to assess the impacts.

As a result of the analysis, the assessment concludes that predicted noise levels from the
operation, HGV movements, mobile plant movement, waste shredder, crusher/ screener,
bulking activities and vehicle wash operation would not exceed representative background
levels and therefore likely to result in low impact according to current the British Standard. It
also concludes that noise from the site would also be below appropriate design levels for
internal levels within sensitive rooms of residential dwellings assuming an open window.

The report recommends a number of potential construction noise and operational noise
mitigation measures based on good practice to minimise noise levels although states that
“these are not required to meet reasonable and appropriate noise level criteria”. The
Council’'s Environmental Health Officer has confirmed agreement with the report and that the
site poses minimal impact on residential amenity with respect to noise. It is not considered
that imposition of conditions could be justified with respect to the 6 tests for use of planning
conditions set down within the National Planning Policy Framework. A condition that a
construction management plan and restriction on hours of construction in order to minimise
construction impacts is considered appropriate.

With respect to concerns about odour the applicant has sought to provide further clarification
regarding the nature of the waste and the way in which it will be managed, particularly with
regard to food waste. The applicant states that the proposals are to handle a mixture of dry
waste streams coming from waste collection rounds, principally from offices, and, whilst
there may be occasional elements of food included, this is not a significant proportion of the
waste received. It is stated that there is no specific food waste collection round proposed to
deliver to this site, but provision has been made for loads containing food. Each load is
inspected as it is unloaded at the site and any waste containing food is removed from the



Page 24

main waste stream and stored separately within a dedicated bay to avoid cross
contamination with recyclable materials. Food deposited into that bay will be loaded into a
sealed storage container for removal from the site. The food bay will then be cleaned and
disinfected to prevent odour.

As a result it is suggested that risk of odours is low as a result of the type of material handled
which is generally low odour, but also because there is a rapid throughput of material with
waste being held on site for only a short period of time. It is indicated that the bays within
the building which handle mixed residual wastes are filled and emptied sequentially so that
waste is not left on site for a prolonged period and does not have the opportunity to become
odorous and that this is the company’s standard operating procedure.

However, as was also referenced in the supporting statement, the building will be built to
facilitate the installation of a misting system. Whilst it states that this is principally used to
control dust within the building, it will also contribute to the minimisation of potential odours.

With respect to dust and litter issues, the existing service yard is hard surfaced and wastes
are only to be deposited in clearly demarcated areas. As a result it is considered that the
potential for dust to be generated by the passage of vehicles over the yard will be low. As
confirmed within the planning supporting statement, all unloading, management and loading
of the dry recyclates and residual waste is to be undertaken within the building. It states that
all waste entering and leaving the site will be in either sealed vehicles or covered containers.
Consequently there will not be windblown litter and that the contained nature of the materials
also means the potential for other issues such as fugitive nails or other items that might
cause punctures deposited on the road will also be low. It is considered that a requirement
that all waste entering and leaving the site will be in either sealed vehicles or covered
containers can be secured by planning condition.

The other element of operations that has the potential to generate dust is the processing of
construction waste. Mobile plant used to undertake processing will be equipped with dust
suppression apparatus in the form of simple water sprays. Methods exist to mitigate
potential dust arising from stockpiled waste. Such issues will be a consideration of the
Environmental Permit issued by the Environment Agency. As stated in the NPPF “...local
planning authorities should focus on whether the development itself is an acceptable use of
the land, and the impact of the use, rather than the control of processes or emissions
themselves where these are subject to approval under pollution control regimes....local
planning authorities should assume that these regimes will operate effectively”.

On the basis of the above, the Council’s Environmental Health Officer has confirmed that
they raise no objections regarding the application. They confirm that they are satisfied that
the noise report demonstrates that, given the location of the site, the proposal poses minimal
likely impact on residential amenity. With regard to odours they state that the site will be
subject to an Environmental Permit issued and conditioned by the Environment Agency and,
as such, any planning consent should not duplicate this role. Notwithstanding that, they
acknowledge that the applicant states that the waste on site will have a turnaround time of
less than 24 hours, and suggests that deodorisers could be used on site. On this basis,
together with the distance from the nearest residential areas, they confirm that they are
satisfied that the odours from the site can be adequately controlled given the information
provided with the application.

Airport Safequarding

Liverpool John Lennon Airport have confirmed that they raise no objection in principle. They
have however requested two conditions be attached to any planning permission requiring



Page 25

submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan for “scavenging and or nesting and loafing
birds” and requiring the contractor/ developer contact Liverpool John Lennon Airport for
permission for any crane exceeding 10 metres in height within 6km of the aerodrome. It is
not considered that sufficient evidence has been provided to demonstrate that the proposed
waste transfer and treatment facility would be attractive to such birds given the inert nature
of the proposed waste streams and the assurances given by the applicant with regards the
likely volumes and handling of any food wastes. The control of height of construction
machinery is considered to be covered by other legislation. Such recommended conditions
are therefore considered to fail the 6 tests for use of planning conditions set down within the
National Planning Policy Framework. They comments and concerns of the Airport can be
attached as an informative to any planning permission.

Highway Considerations

The existing site is currently accessed via Pickerings Road through the existing industrial
area but connecting to the wider highway network linking through Halebank via Hale Road.
The proposed use will continue to be accessed in the same way.

Limited formal parking is available within the site. The application includes provision to
formalise additional parking including off site works within the adopted highway which can be
secured by Grampian style planning condition. The site is considered to be adequately
served with regards accessibility to bus routes and is served by suitable pedestrian links.

The application was accompanied by an outline Transport Statement which following review
was considered to be unacceptable. A revised document was requested by the Highway
Officer and a professional report was commissioned by the applicant. This revised document
expanded on how the site would operate and the projected trip generation based on
anecdotal information. Concern was expressed that no TRICS data was provided and the
consultant explained that due the nature of the site there was no associated data available.
The highway officer requested that the site be considered under its existing use class which
demonstrated that should the site be brought back into lawful use the predicted trip
generation could be well in excess of those anticipated for the proposed use. Previous traffic
model data commissioned by Halton Borough Council shows that the existing network
operates well within capacity and that no significant impact likely to be caused by the
proposed change of use.

On that basis the Council’'s Highways Engineer has confirmed that no objections are raised
to the scheme subject to conditions included within the recommendation section of this
report as follows:

. That the proposed maximum throughput be conditioned to restrict HGV vehicle
movements to those predicted within the Transport Statement.

. Parking to be set out as per the plans prior to site being brought into use including
the necessary footway strengthening and dropped kerbs.

. Safe, secure, covered and accessible Cycle storage should be provided as part of
the development with details agreed prior to occupation.

. A construction phase management plan be submitted prior to commencement

including details of to minimise mud on the highway.

It is therefore considered that no significant transport or highway safety issues are raised
capable of sustaining a refusal of planning permission and is acceptable based on NPPF,
UDP and Core Strategy Policy.



Page 26

Ecology

No ecological information has been submitted with the application. However, the
development site has until recently been an operational demolition / scrap metal facility and
there is no vegetation on site. Therefore, the Council’s retained adviser has confirmed that,
on this occasion, an Ecological Appraisal is not required. They further advise that whilst the
development is near to a number of European sites protected under the Habitats
Regulations, no pathway could give rise to likely significant effects on the European sites
and a detailed Habitats Regulations Assessment report is not warranted. It is also advised
that the development is unlikely to harm the features of any locally designated sites and that
buildings to be demolished have negligible bat roost potential. Natural England confirm that
they have no comments.

Flood Risk and Drainage

The application site is identified as lying within Flood Risk Zone 1. In accordance with
national and local policy the proposed development is therefore considered to be located
within an area of low flood risk. The site does however exceed 1Ha and the application is
therefore supported by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA).

The Lead Local Flood Authority has confirmed that the submitted FRA adequately considers
the site’s flood risk and discusses surface water runoff strategy. It includes an outline design
with separate system for foul and surface water with surface water runoff attenuation and
interceptor, and a recommendation that a planning condition for submission of a scheme of
surface water drainage to be attached to the permission with discharge to (United Utilities)
surface water sewer. This is reported to represent a significant improvement over the
existing situation where there is no existing separate surface water connection and the
planning statement goes on to state that rates will be attenuated by 50% as the site is in a
critical drainage area.

The submission is considered to provide sufficient justification for the drainage proposals in
accordance with the drainage hierarchy. The LLFA and United Utilities has confirmed that
they raise no objections in principle. Detailed drainage design, including appropriate
interceptors and attenuation, can be adequately secured by appropriately worded condition
attached to a planning permission.

Contaminated Land

The application is supported by Phase 1 and 2 Site Investigation Reports. The results of the
risk assessment indicate that there is no significant source of contaminants present so that
there is a negligible risk to all receptors including humans, controlled waters and ecological
receptors. Whilst the Environment Agency has identified that the site lies within 250m of a
landfill site which may raise issues of migratory methane and carbon dioxide, the report
states that no precautions are required with respect to landfill type gasses, radon or
hydrocarbons.

The site is currently hard surfaced with concrete and, whilst excavations will be required for
drainage, weighbridge construction etc. this is proposed to be largely retained in situ. Given
the site history and previous site uses the potential for asbestos containing material has
been acknowledged and some cement bound chrysotile was encountered during the
investigation. The report concludes however that finding such concentrations is “very
common” and does not signify that remediation is required. It does however highlight the
potential presence of contaminants and that suitable risk assessments and safe working
practices are recommended including dust monitoring and suppression. It further identifies
that there is a possibility of encountering unexpected contamination and sets out procedures
should that occur.



Page 27

The Council’s Contaminated Land Officer has confirmed that he raises no objection and that
the unforeseen contamination procedure is sufficient to effectively manage any arisings. It is
considered that this can be secured by suitably wording planning condition. The comments
of the Environment Agency can be attached to any planning permission as an informative.

Other Waste Issues, Sustainable Development and Climate Change.

The proposal is major development and involves demolition and construction activities which
are likely to generate significant volumes of waste. Policy WM8 of the Merseyside and
Halton Waste Joint Local Plan (WLP), the National Planning Policy for Waste and Planning
Practice Guidance apply. These policies require the minimisation of waste production and
implementation of measures to achieve efficient use of resources, including designing out
waste and minimisation of off-site disposal. In accordance with policy WM8, evidence
through a waste audit or a similar mechanism (e.g. a site waste management plan)
demonstrating how this will be achieved is required. It is considered that this can be secured
by a suitably worded planning condition.

Halton Core Strategy Policy CS19 (Sustainable Development and Climate Change) seeks to
encourage BREEAM Excellent standard from 2013. As a new build, it is also expected that
the building should comply with BREEAM Excellent rating, as required by the policy WM10.
The Supporting Statement indicates that it is not possible to meet BREEAM rating standards
due to the proposed nature of the waste transfer station and commercial arrangements. The
Council’s retained adviser has raised queries in this regard identifying that there are
BREEAM technical standards for industrial buildings and several case studies are available
for similar buildings. The applicant has provided a detailed response in respect to BREEAM
and policies CS19 and WM10. It argues that efforts to secure a BREEAM rating would be
inappropriate and counterproductive in this case. Amongst other factors, they argue that the
nature and use of the buildings involved, that the main building is unheated and not cooled,
relies on translucent roof panels and LED lighting and that the existing yard is to be retained
without significant excavation are not conducive to securing a BREEAM excellent score.

They argue that “it must be remembered that the purpose of the proposed development is to
reduce vehicle mileage and thereby achieve a net carbon saving, as well as reducing the
total amount of HGV traffic on the highway network, improve overall recycling rates and
contribute towards the more sustainable management of waste. As always, the policies of
the plan need to be considered within this overall balance.”

They further argue that whilst the development is unable to demonstrate compliance with
element of the policy, overall the proposals are in compliance with the principle and goals of
that policy, in conformity with the Development Plan when taken as a whole, and meet the
principles of achieving sustainable development as required by the NPPF.

When considered against the justification to policies CS19 and WM10 this justification is
considered acceptable and it is not considered that refusal of planning permission could be
justified on these grounds.

Conclusions

The application seeks permission for the change of use of the site from a demolition
contractor’s yard with external waste storage and sorting to a waste transfer and treatment
facility. A significant proportion of the waste will be stored and stored within a new proposed
waste transfer building which will also further screen the site from surrounding areas. The
proposals will also enable the planning authority a greater degree of control over the amount
and heights of waste stored and processed externally.



-_—

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

16.

17.

Page 28

Core Strategy Policy CS2, JWLP Policy WMO0 and NPPF paragraphs 11 and 38 set out the
presumption in favour of sustainable development whereby applications that are consistent
with national and up-to-date local policy should be approved without delay.

The Council’'s retained adviser has confirmed that the proposals are compliant with the Joint
Waste Local Plan and Core Strategy policy CS24.The proposals are also considered to
accord with UDP Policies MW1 and MW2. Where any areas of such compliance have been
queried with the applicant, these are considered to have been adequately addressed and it
is not considered that refusal of planning permission could be justified in this regard.

The proposals are considered appropriate to the character of the industrial area, will result in
significant environmental improvement when compared with the former use and contribute to
the regeneration of the area. The proposals are accord with UDP Policy RG5, BE3 and
GE30.

The Council’'s Highways Engineer and Environmental Health Officer have confirmed that
they raise no objections.

RECOMMENDATION
That the application is approved subject to conditions relating to the following:

Standard 3 year timescale for commencement of development

Specifying approved and amended plans

Requiring submission and agreement of a Construction Environmental Management Plan to
include wheel wash and construction hours

Materials condition(s), requiring submission and agreement of building external finishing
materials (BE2)

Condition requiring submission and agreement of details of weighbridge office.

Boundary treatment condition(s) requiring replacement entrance gates/ fencing to be colour
coated with colour to be agreed (BE2)

Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be constructed prior to occupation of properties/
commencement of use. (BE1)

Grampian style condition relating to off-site highway works to facilitate parking provision
(TP12)

Requiring submission and agreement of cycle parking details (TP6)

Condition restricting waste throughput to 85,000 tonnes per annum

Condition restricting waste types accepted/ processed

Condition restricting hours of waste delivery, processing a export.

Condition(s) restricting external storage locations, height, processing

Condition(s) requiring waste to be delivered/ exported in sealed/ covered wagons (BE1)
Condition relating to contamination/ requiring development be carried out in accordance with
the approved plan for unexpected contamination (PR14/15)

Conditions relating to/ requiring submission and agreement of detailed surface water/
highway drainage scheme including attenuation/ interceptors (BE1/ PR5)

Submission and agreement of Site Waste Management Plan (WM8)

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
As required by:
The National Planning Policy Framework;



Page 29

e The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
(Amendment No.2) Order 2012; and
This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively with the
applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of Halton.



_.._]f,\.___ Development Control Committee
HALTON 7th January 2019

BOROUGH COUNCIL




)
M\ __
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

Plan | A: Location Plan




)
M\ __
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

2 obed

Application Number: 18/00285/WST Plan IB : Proposed Elevations




Development Control Committee

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Hale Road Industrial Estate

X N\ \ 7N\

OSK/WELFARE GABIN |
LEAH

\ %vf’ex;snm OFFICE/STORAGE AREA |

./ PROPOSED WEIGHBRIDGE K

\ ¢ /
™\, R -/

\\ 108D PROCESSING AREA|

N

€€ abed

b

PROPOSED FUEL TANK M/ 4
g, AN
/| PROPOSED FIRE TANK | 5

_|Ex1STING PARKING AREA| [

{

-

~=[

.| / [PROPOSED FIRE PUMP HOUSE|
[PROPOSED PLANT ROOM |/

“"\__{PROPOSED WTS BUILDING|

T EISwSw
A r"l \\-v

Application Number: 18/00285/WST Plan |1C : Proposed Site Layout




_h_

HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Control Committee

1_ 6.0m 3_ 6.0m 3_ 8.0m _‘_ 8.0m _5_ 8.0m _5_ ) 6.0m ‘_7_ 6.0m ‘_7
@ ag, ..3; = iA)
il FooD
i1t WASTE z
[ TRAILER g@a EU " :
Iy FOOD
L WASTE BAY WASTE I
i} il {®
| Y "[
|: m BULKER
= | y o
| (9]
il m = # ic w
E
L -]
~fi— E #——i0
:z%gguu t:  am® e 135me !
WASTE 13| RESIDUAL i RESIDUAL i
EH WASTE = WASTE { E
H: i il @
i i |
= = ' =1 = IE

E TANK/PUMPHCUSE

CONCRETE PUSH WALLS

Application Number: 18/00285/WST

INTERNAL CONCRETE DIVISION WALLS

Plan 1D :WTS Building Layout




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

{, N

| \mu

Gg abed

Application Number: 18/00285/WST Plan |E :WTS Building Elevations




_h_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

/ L. y. A
NEW 2.1m HIGH GALVANISED A N ‘
PALISADE FENCE y '

L
| EXISTING 2.1m HIGH PALISADE FENCE |

/

{EXISTING 2.1m HIGH PALISADE FENbE
>

g N e \

h . EXISTING STEEL SOUD I"ANEL FENCE

v
‘ e" 4

\

J “ 4
3 [EXISTING 2.1m HIGH PALISADE
N < v N\ FENCE
PROPOSED 2.1m HIGH x 12m WIDE PALISADE GATE _ D
; = < 7 = :
PROPOSED 2,1m HIGH CLOSED [ U
" BOARDED FENCE 4 QD
/ F T e, AN o
/ EXISTING 2.1m HIGH WELDMESH FENCE |, o
3 4 N, \ 2 R N L
3 N > ] ’ PAOPOSED 2.1m HIGH CLOSED : w
) N AP ~ BOARDED FENCE |~ \
EETES = R | m
K s A

M dy % Oy O e AN e e e fefefdededede e dede T 140 il

= r

g8 amwwn T

T i Lt vt Lt
b\
11 i g 8 i All
| i B
= > e i ) z
SECTION AT POST TYPE A GP GALVANISED FENCE DETAIL
TYPICAL DETAILS OF (Comglianca 10 BS1722-12 2006]

PROPOSED GATES

Application Number: 18/00285/WST Plan |F : Proposed Fencing Details




o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

4000

= 30m?*
g zD MIXED
it I GLASS
w —
30m?
WwooD
1 | | 1 1
VAN
E ELEVATION
PLAN ON PROPOSED GLASS BAYS
20001
LEGY S0 &
0sm W 00K FBLO
L —— 10—

Development Control Committee

/€ abed

Application Number: 18/00285/WST

ELEVATION B - SIDE VIEW ON GLASS BAYS

TR

Plan |G : Proposed Glass Bay Elevations




)
M\ __
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

©

Copyright Bluesky

Application Number: 18/00285/WST Plan IH : Aerial Photograph




Page 39 Agenda Item 4

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee

DATE: 7 January 2019

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director — Enterprise, Community and
Resources

SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Items

WARD(S): Boroughwide

The following Appeals have been received / are in progress:

18/00282/FUL Proposed new boundary wall to front and side at 112 Lunts
Heath Road, Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 5BA.

18/00363/0UT 18/00363/OUT Application for outline planning permission with
appearance, landscaping and scale reserved for single two
storey dwelling in side garden area at 3 Nickleford Hall Drive
Widnes.

The following Appeals have been determined:

18/00005/REFUSE 18/00001/FUL Proposed single storey rear extension with rear
/side facing balcony over at 6 Walsingham Drive Runcorn.

Appeal Dismissed

18/00008/REFUSE 18/00282/FUL Proposed new boundary wall to front and side at
112 Lunts Heath Road Widnes.

Appeal Dismissed

17/00548/FUL Proposed demolition of existing stables building and
construction of 1 no. single storey detached dwelling with
access from Chester Road at land to the North of Junction
between Keckwick Lane and Chester Road, Daresbury,
Warrington, Cheshire.

Appeal allowed

The following Appeals have been withdrawn:

16/00495/0UTEIA Resubmission of outline planning application 15/00266/OUTEIA
by application for Outline planning permission (with all matters

other than access reserved) for mixed-use development
comprising: up to 550 residential dwellings; up to 15,000 sq m of



17/00406/FULEIA

17/00407/OUTEIA

Page 40

employment floorspace (Use Class B1); new local centre of up
to 3,000 sq m (Use Classes A1 - A5 and D1 - dual use);
provision of infrastructure including a new junction on to A558
Daresbury Expressway and details of access at Land Adjacent
To Delph Lane.

Resubmission of application 14/00539/FULEIA for the erection
of 295 residential dwellings with associated landscaping and site
infrastructure, construction of a new road junction onto
Daresbury Expressway (A558), installation of a signalised
junction to Delph Lane, provision of public open space and play
facilities and associated works on Land Adjacent To Delph
Lane.

Resubmission of application 13/00206/OUTEIA hybrid planning
application for up to 300 residential dwellings comprising: full
planning application for 122 residential dwellings (mix of 2, 3
and 4 bedroom houses), new spine road, turning head to the
east of Delph Lane canal bridge, new junction between the
proposed spine road and the A56, pedestrian/cycle routes and
associated works (Phase A); and outline planning application for
up to 178 residential dwellings (all matters are reserved) (Phase
B) at Land Adjacent to Delph Lane West.

The following Applications have been withdrawn:

16/00347/S73

17/00606/FUL

18/00482/S73

18/00495/FUL

18/00497/PDE

Application under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning
Act to vary Condition 1 of permission 15/00286/FUL to amend
the house design in respect of Plot 1 by the inclusion of a new
drawing RG-PL-001.1 on Land Between The Old Post Office
And Rock Garth, Chester Road, Daresbury, Warrington,
Cheshire.

Proposed erection of substation at Fresenius Kabi, Cestrian
Court, Eastgate Way, Runcorn, Cheshire, WA7 1NT.

Application under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning
Act to vary condition 2 of permission 15/00430/FUL substituting
approved plans BHNW/028-01G, 028-11F and 028-13B for 028-
O1L, 028-11F and 028-13F to amend the layout at The Former
Marley Eternit Site, Derby Road, Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 9NQ.

Proposed extension to side, replacement of roof with higher roof
to incorporate bedroom with Juliette balcony to rear elevation at
33 Swynnerton Way, Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 9RX.

Proposed single storey rear extension projecting from the rear
wall by 3.8 metres the extension has a maximum height of 2.9
metres and an eaves height of 2.1 metres at 19 Catford Close,
Widnes, Cheshire, WA8 4GG.



Page 41

New Listed Building

Council has been notified that Pius X church has been listed at grade Il. The
reasons for designation are set out below.

Reasons for Designation
The former Roman Catholic Church of St Pius X, including the attached campanile,
is listed at Grade Il for the following principal reasons:

Architectural interest:
* it is an architecturally bold example of a relatively small-scale mid-C20 Roman
Catholic church;

* the church and campanile have a well-executed overall design, to create a
successful stripped-back and free interpretation of a traditional architectural style;

* internally the main worship space demonstrates an impressive simplicity and is
unified through the dramatic full-height pointed arches to the nave which are echoed
in the side windows, niches for the altars and the entrances to the confessionals
Historic interest:

* FA Kelly was part of Jones and Kelly, a prominent Irish architectural firm
responsible for several ecclesiastical buildings in the C20; this church is one the few
identified examples of the firm’s work in England.



Page 42 Agenda Item 5

Environmental Fund Management Board

Meeting — 25t July 2018

Minutes

Present: Clirs: M Wharton (MW) R Hignett (RH) B Woolfall (BW) Officers: A
Plant (AP) D Halliburton (Minutes)

1 Apologies - lan Leivesley
2 Minutes of Meeting 9/3/18 — as circulated

3 Update on actions from the previous meeting
4 Grant Fund Requests:
e Halton War Memorials Conservation — Submitter: Martin McCoy

Request £60,707.83. AP outlined scheme, discussed effect of request for
outside funding relating to Widnes Memorial. BW — is funding available from
British Legion? AP not as far as we are aware. MW Outlined position re Hale
memorial. BW could we wait until outcome of outside bid is known. BW
summarises, approve 3 Runcorn and 1 Hale and await outcome for outside
bid for Widnes. AP offers to provide update. We are allocating £48958

MW — suggests liaison with Hale PC Clerk.

e Sewer Gas Destructor Lamp Refurbishment and Interpretation —
Submitter Clir Pauline Sinnott

Request £7636.67. Discussed, all members are supportive, agreed to allocate
£7636.67

e Environmental Improvement Contingency Fund — Submitter: Jimmy
Unsworth

Request £15,000.00 on an ongoing basis — AP outlines the intent of the
scheme. Will provide flexibility to deal with small works up to £1000 per
project. BW enquires if Community Payback still used? AP yes. MW
discusses the intent of the scheme. AP will update members of how funds are
used and maintain element of control over uses. Agreed to support.

e Halton Lodge Play Area Improvements — Submitter: Christine Walker
Halton Housing Trust

Request £12500.00. AP outlines, park has been closed, Ward Clirs keen to
keep park open, scheme is jointly supported. BW — do we at times with play



Page 43

areas throw “good money after bad” as they are often vandalised? Agreed to
support

Runcorn Hill Bowling Green — Submitter: Martin McCoy

Request £52507.10. AP outlines. MW — have we approached external
funding? BW —is green needed if it is currently “redundant”? Agreed to defer.
AP to arrange Paul Wright to attend next meeting to provide information.

Barrows Green Widnes — Submitter: Martin McCoy

Request £156583.17. MW — suggests defer until next meeting to allow time
to discuss with CliIr Polhill and for Paul Wright to be in attendance. Deferred

Runcorn Hill Footbridge — Submitter: Martin McCoy

Request £21266.00. Discussed where this would normally be funded from. Is
there capital budget. BW — discusses joint funding, can contribution be
sought? Deferred to meeting with Paul Wright in attendance. Deferred

Sanders Hey Play Area — Submitter: Chris Featherstone on behalf of
Councillor Martha Lloyd-Jones

Request £8000 over 3 yrs (£2667 pa). RH outlines scheme. BW speaks re
scheme and support from Area Forums. Is maintenance cost within remit of
EfW scheme? AP advises members on scope of EfW scheme. RH — this is a
community improvement and may have wider benefits. BW discusses similar
in Upton Rocks. MW suggests request for play equipment might be more
acceptable. AP suggests he asks them to re-draw the scheme and request.

Town Park, Southern Path & Street Furniture Improvements. Submitter:
Martin McCoy

Request £209,000 BW asks how much allocated to Town Park so far?
(£130,000 for Ski/Railway, £350,000 Town Park Team). AP outlines
aspirations. MW suggests defer to meeting with Paul Wright present to
discuss “Masterplan”. Deferred

Widnes SUD North to South Route. Submitter: Highways and Open
Spaces

Request £205,652.54. AP Outlines — could be split over period and scheme
brings in other funding. MW — clarifies that this may not happen if other
funding not secured. Agreed to support on terms of split over period of years.

Runcorn Station Quarter. Submitter: Sara Munikwa
Request £50,000. MW questions ongoing nature. BW details scheme and

asks why EfW are being asked to assist? AP outlines — will not be available to
spend without further detail, this is essentially banking money for future



Page 44

requests, i.e to build a contingency for the Quarter. BW — for a scheme

potentially costing millions what will the EfW contribution pay for? BW suggest

not agreeing but “ringfencing” funds within the scheme but not specifically

allocated. Agreed to proceed on this basis.

5 Any other Business

Discussed funding from Joint Authority. Discussed potential uplift in income

from increased processing at site.

6 Date of next meeting: Discussed having Annual Meeting in June, then Oct,
then Feb with only June meeting set (others could be held/cancelled as

required)
Summary:

Schemes under consideration:

Outcome
Halton War Memorials 60,707.83
Sewer Gas Lamp 7,636.67
Environmental Contingency Fund (£15,000 per 15,000.00
annum ongoing)
Halton Lodge Play Area 12,500.00
Runcorn Hill Bowling Green 52,507.10
Barrows Green 156,583.17
Runcorn Hill Footbridge 21,266.00
Sanders Hey Play Area (£8000 over 3 years) 2667.00
Town Park Southern Path 209,000.00
Widnes SUD 205,652.54
Runcorn Station Quarter (£50,000 per annum 50,000.00
ongoing)
TOTAL for Consideration 793,520.31
Outcome
Halton War Memorials 60,707.83 | Partially
Supported
Sewer Gas Lamp 7,636.67 | Supported
Environmental Contingency Fund (£15,000 per 15,000.00 | Supported
annum ongoing)
Halton Lodge Play Area 12,500.00 | Supported
Runcorn Hill Bowling Green 52,507.10 | Deferred
Barrows Green 156,583.17 | Deferred
Runcorn Hill Footbridge 21,266.00 | Deferred
Sanders Hey Play Area (£8000 over 3 years) 2667.00 | Redraw
and
Resubmit
Town Park Southern Path 209,000.00 | Deferred
Widnes SUD 205,652.54 | Supported




Page 45

Runcorn Station Quarter (£50,000 per annum 50,000.00 | Other
ongoing)
TOTAL for Consideration 793,520.31




	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE
	1800285WST VEOLIA Widnes GH
	Cttee_Jan

	4 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS
	5 Environmental Fund Management Minutes

